Oaklands Road
Haywards Heath
West Sussex
RH16 1SS

Switchboard: 01444 458166
DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1
www.midsussex.gov.uk

19 July 2021
Given Covid levels and the ongoing work to get the adult population double vaccinated, the
Audit Committee will occur with appropriate Councillors participating via a remote video
link, and public access via a live stream video through the Mid Sussex District Council’s
YouTube channel.

Dear Councillor,
A meeting of AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held VIA REMOTE VIDEO LINK on TUESDAY, 27TH
JULY, 2021 at 5.00 pm when your attendance is requested.
Yours sincerely,
KATHRYN HALL
Chief Executive
AGENDA
Pages
1.

Roll Call and Virtual Meeting Explanation.

2.

To receive apologies for absence.

3.

To receive Declarations of Interest from Members in respect of any
matter on the Agenda.

4.

To confirm the Minutes of the meetings held on 2 March 2021 and 28
April 2021.

5.

To consider any items that the Chairman agrees to take as urgent
business.

6.

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21.

11 - 16

7.

Internal Audit Annual Report 2020/2021.

17 - 22

8.

Review of Treasury Management Activity 2020/21.

23 - 36

9.

External Audit Plan.

37 - 80
Working together for a better Mid Sussex

3 - 10

10.

New Internal Auditor Provider: Draft Charter.

81 - 94

11.

Committee Work Programme 2021/22.

95 - 96

12.

Questions pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 10.2 due notice of
which has been given.

To:

Members of Audit Committee: Councillors M Pulfer (Chair), R Cromie (Vice-Chair),
A Boutrup, M Cornish, S Hicks, R Jackson and L Stockwell

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Agenda Item 4
Minutes of a meeting of Audit Committee
held on Tuesday, 2nd March, 2021
from 5.00 pm - 6.26 pm
Present:

M Pulfer (Chair)
R Cromie (Vice-Chair)

M Cornish
Absent:

1.

S Hicks

L Stockwell

Councillor A Boutrup

ROLL CALL AND VIRTUAL MEETING EXPLANATION.
The Chairman introduced the meeting and took a roll call of Members in attendance.
The Legal Officer explained the virtual meeting procedure.

2.

TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
Apologies were received from Councillor Boutrup.

3.

TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.
None.

4.

TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 17
NOVEMBER 2020.
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 17 November 2020 were
agreed as a correct record and electronically signed by the Chairman.

5.

TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN AGREES TO TAKE AS
URGENT BUSINESS.
None.

6.

INTERNAL AUDIT - MONITORING REPORT 15TH FEBRUARY 2021.
Gillian Edwards, Audit and Risk Manager introduced the report. She highlighted the
good results considering the unprecedented workload in last few months. The
remaining audits will be complete or substantially complete by the end of the financial
year. There were no high priority findings. The data matching exercise for grants had
not been carried out before but would be received at the next committee meeting. It
will provide extra assurance that the covid grants have been given in accordance
with the Government guidelines. Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services confirmed
the Contracts Register had been updated and the four outstanding items were due to
added on 1 April 2021.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

3

Members discussed the monitoring report and expressed concern that updating of
the Contracts Register was regularly raised, asked if any new procedures were now
in place, asked for clarification on terminology used,
Members welcomed the
substantial findings on the Housing Benefits and NNDR audits.
The Head of Regulatory Services confirmed the Contracts Register requires
updating every quarter but would now be updated monthly. There is now a new
system in place to take information from the Contract Notices. The missing smaller
entries require cooperation from several departments.
The Audit and Risk Manager noted that the new monthly update procedure will make
the process smoother. She confirmed that publication of payments over £500 is
separate to the Contracts Register. The ‘Substantial’ rating of an audit opinion is the
highest rating, it indicates a good system of internal control and controls are being
complied with. A satisfactory rating indicates internal controls are in place and are
not fully complied with. The ratings are based on judgement and negotiation.
As there were no further questions the Chairman took Members to the
recommendations in the report which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED
The Committee received and noted the report.

7.

THREE YEAR INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN.
Gillian Edwards, Audit and Risk Manager introduced the report. She noted that it is
subject to change, after discussions with the Section 151 Officer particularly in the
later stages of the plan. The plan covers the main systems with contingency time for
other areas and follow up work where necessary. There was more grant assurance
work as more grants had been paid out, data matching is completed every year, but
that had increased this year.
Members discussed the computer audit and staff authority to access systems, cyber
security, increase in contingency allowance, debts relating to the dissolved Census
partnership,
The Audit and Risk Manager confirmed that access to systems is reviewed at each
audit to ensure that only current employees have appropriate access and leavers are
promptly removed from the system. She acknowledged the increase in cyber-attacks
and expects to discuss this with the Section 151 Officer next year. This may be
audited annually in future and links to the increase in contingency for the following
years. She confirmed all debts are reviewed in the sundry debtors’ audit, all debts
are checked that they have been properly incurred before they pursued. If the debt is
not recoverable then they must consider writing them off. Ernst and Young reviewed
the provision for bad debts.
The Chairman confirmed that cyber risk is insured, and insurance company provide
regular updates. Members raised the Horsham District Council debt being written off.
Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources confirmed the correct procedure was
followed and a bill was issued for incurred expenses. There was a disagreement
when the Census partnership ended, Horsham District Council (HDC) had some
issues and left. He noted that Adur-Worthing Council had paid, HDC could not

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

4

resolve their issues and did not pay. A judgement had been made, and the debt was
written off.
As there were no further questions the Chairman took Members to the
recommendations in the report which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED
The Committee received and noted the report.

8.

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER.
Kevin Suter, External Auditor Ernst and Young introduced the report and he
confirmed that the annual letter summarised the audit. He highlighted that the audit
was unqualified and the pandemic had changed how they undertook the audit. He
noted that page 25 should state “we have concluded that you have put in place
proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources”. He
advised that a review of the fees was underway to ensure they reflect the risks of the
audit and put them on a sustainable footing. Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd
had commenced a review in February 2020, no agreement has been reached. He
advised another audit of the financial management system would not be necessary
unless the system was changed in the future. The audit of the housing benefit
subsidy to the DWP would soon be completed.
Chairman noted that the audit was unqualified and he thanked the Head of
Corporate Resources and the finance staff for their help. Members discussed the
audit fees and asked for clarification on the listing of non-audit fees.
The External Auditor advised there was a low return on the fees, the quality is not
compromised in relation to the work undertaken and they must ensure public
confidence in the council. The non-audit fees are for work that are not a statutory
requirement and must be shown separately. This is work the Council had asked the
external auditors to complete- but it was limited to DWP grant work only.
As there were no further questions the Chairman took Members to the
recommendations in the report which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED
The Committee received and noted the report.

9.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2021/22 TO 2023/24.
The Chairman drew attention to the role of the Audit Committee in scrutinising
reports.
Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report. He highlighted the
proposed change to the Investment Policy as the Council is receiving additional
funds at short notice from central government. The changes are required to prevent a
breach of the existing counter party limits, he noted the lag between receipt of
funding and payment out to businesses.
Members discussed the capital financing requirement, debt rescheduling and the
ratio of financing costs to revenues streams. They debated the use of ethical

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

5

investments, the addition of AL Rayan Bank Plc, investment in Town and Parish
Councils and interest rates.
Pamela Coppelman, Treasury Advisor for Adur-Worthing Council and Mid Sussex
District Council confirmed that a report would be represented to the committee if a
rescheduling of debt was proposed. She noted that the Council would still be liable
for interest on any loan.
The financial markets are constantly reviewed for potential investments taking into
consideration security, liquidity and yield. The list of specified banks is a list for the
committee to approve and due diligence is always done before placing funds. AL
Rayan Bank Plc stood out for ethical reasons and was included as the committee
had asked for this type of investment. Currently there was no commitment to invest
in Al Rayan Bank Plc.
She noted that the format of the report is prescribed by the government. The
Council’s ratio of financing costs to net revenue streams is very low (around 1%)
which is good. Interest rates will remain low for a couple of years but it is hoped by
2023/24 they will improve. The Council will have paid off more of the outstanding
debts and the ratio will improve.
The Chairman expressed concern of the possible addition of Al Rayan Bank Plc
which is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority, a sharia bank owned by Qatar
Bank. He advised that the usual checks and balances are completed prior to
selection of any counter party institution.
The Head of Corporate Resources confirmed the criteria had not changed and the
only addition was the proposal to add AL Rayan Bank Plc. He advised the
committee that Local Authorities are sovereign bodies and do not go bankrupt. The
Council has not lent and is unlikely to lend to Parish Councils.
In response to the Chairman’s concern the Treasury Officer advised that Appendix G
is a list of countries with a sovereign credit rating of AA- and above. The list is
supplied by the treasury advisors for information, there are currently no investments
in foreign banks. Interest rates have not been quoted as they change on a daily
basis, rates are checked and authorisation is obtained from the Head of Corporate
Resources before placing funds. Any investment in AL Rayan Bank Plc would be for
a fixed term at a fixed rate. She confirmed the treasury advisors check the counter
party statements before investing.
The Chairman noted the robust discussion and as there were no further questions
the Chairman took Members to the recommendations in the report which were
agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED
The Committee received and noted the report.

10.

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2021/22.
Members discussed how the Capital Strategy would impact the investment in
Temporary Accommodation.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

6

The Head of Corporate Resources advised that Temporary Accommodation would
be financed from capital receipts when capital receipts come forward. The receipt of
these are unpredictable.
As there were no further questions the Chairman took Members to the
recommendations in the report which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED
The Committee is agreed to forward the draft Strategy to Council for approval at the
next appropriate meeting.

11.

QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.2 DUE NOTICE
OF WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.
None.

The meeting finished at 6.26 pm
Chairman

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of a meeting of Audit Committee
held on Wednesday, 28th April, 2021
from 6.33 pm - 6.35 pm
Present:

M Pulfer
R Cromie

1.

A Boutrup
M Cornish

S Hicks
L Stockwell

CONFIRMATION OF MEMBERS ON THE COMMITTEE.
The Solicitor to the Council confirmed the names of the Members sitting on this
committee for the 2021/22 Council year.

2.

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN.
Councillor Cromie nominated Councillor Pulfer as Chairman of the Committee for the
2021/22 Council year. This was seconded by Councillor Stockwell and with no
further nominations put forward, this was agreed.
RESOLVED
That Councillor Pulfer be elected Chairman of the Committee for the 2021/22 Council
year.

3.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN.
Councillor Pulfer nominated Councillor Cromie as Vice-Chairman of the Committee
for the 2021/22 Council year. This was seconded by Councillor Stockwell and with
no further nominations put forward, this was agreed.
RESOLVED
That Councillor Cromie be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the
2021/22 Council year.

4.

TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN AGREES TO TAKE AS
URGENT BUSINESS.
None.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

9

The meeting finished at 6.35 pm
Chairman

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

10

Agenda Item 6
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21
REPORT OF:
Contact Officer:
Wards Affected:
Key Decision:
Report to:

Head of Corporate Resources
Peter Stuart
Email: peter.stuart@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477315
All MSDC Wards
No
Audit Committee
26th July 2021

Purpose of Report
1.

This report brings forward the authority’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for
consideration and approval.

Recommendation
2.

The Committee is asked to consider and approve the AGS for inclusion in the
Statement of Accounts 2020/21.

Background
3.

The Annual Governance Statement is a statutory document which explains the processes
and procedures in place to enable the council to carry out its functions effectively.

4.

The AGS forms part of the governance framework of the authority and whilst Members have
approved it as part of the Statement of Accounts (and will continue to do so) the Cipfa
guidance is that it is also considered as a separate item.

5.

The document, in addition to stating that the organisation acknowledges its responsibility for
ensuring governance is effective, should;







focus on outcomes and value for money
evaluate against the local code of governance (i.e. the Constitution) and principles
be in an open and readable style
include an opinion on whether arrangements are fit for purpose
include identification of significant governance issues and an action plan to address them
explain action taken in the year to address the significant governance issues identified in
the previous year’s statement
 be signed by the chief executive and leading member in a council.
6

The AGS is attached at Appendix A. Members are invited to consider the document and
approve it for 2020/21.

.
Policy Context
7.

This report fulfils the Council’s obligations under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

Other Options Considered
8.

None.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

11

Financial Implications
9.

None.

Risk Management Implications
10.

None.

Equality and Customer Service Implications
11.

None.

Other Material Implications
12.

None.

Sustainability Implications
13.

None

Background Papers
None

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

12

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21

1.

Scope of responsibility

Mid Sussex District Council (“the Council”) is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and
including arrangements for the management of risk.
2.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by which the
authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and
leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives
of appropriate, cost effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives
and can therefore only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks, the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised, (and the impact should they be realised), and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically.
The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ending 31 March 2021
and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts.
3.

The Council’s governance framework

The Council’s Constitution, which is updated annually (and last updated in May 2020), sets out
how the Council operates. It states what matters are reserved for decision by the whole Council,
the responsibilities of the Cabinet and the matters reserved for collective and individual decision.
Decision-making powers not reserved for councillors are delegated to the Chief Executive and
Heads of Service. The Monitoring Officer ensures that all decisions made are legal and supports
the Standards Committee in promoting high standards of conduct amongst Members and the wider
Parish Council community in Mid Sussex.
The Scrutiny Committees are dual role in that they offer advice to Cabinet and Council both
collectively, and to Cabinet members individually, and will scrutinise decisions made by the
Cabinet, individual Cabinet members and Executive decisions taken by officers and those
published on the Members’ Information Service, and in the formulation of new policies. Call-ins
can be made on these decisions and this has been enacted once in the last year.
The overall budget and policy framework of the Council is set by the Council and all decisions are
made within this framework. The Council’s overall policy is represented through the Corporate
Plan, which is a combination of service and financial plans.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

13

The Corporate Plan is a key reference for the Medium Term Financial Plan, which enables the
Council to forecast forward and make best use of financial, human, technological and other
resources available and to enable the continued provision of value for money services that meet
the needs of residents, businesses and other stakeholders. At the broadest level, the Council also
works with a number of key strategic partners through the local strategic partnership group of
organisations.
From the Corporate Plan, service plans and business plans are developed and individual officer
work plans are agreed, with performance targets agreed at every level. More detailed budgets are
aligned to corresponding plans following a robust budget challenge process, which challenges
managers to demonstrate efficiency and value for money. Performance is monitored and
managed at every level on a regular basis.
The Council also monitors its performance through feedback from its residents and service users.
An analysis of complaints raised under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy is regularly
reported and considered by the Scrutiny Committee for Customer Services, Service Delivery and
Community; the last instance being in February 2021. The Council also has a Whistleblowing
Policy, which encourages staff to report any instances of suspected unlawful conduct, financial
malpractice, or actions that are dangerous to the public or environment.
The Council’s financial management arrangements conform to the standards of the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), and have regard to the ‘Statement on the
Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government’. The Head of Corporate Resources has
statutory responsibility for the proper management of the Council’s finances and is a key member
of the Management Team. The four Heads of Service with the Chief Executive sit as a
Management Team and may further devolve decision making to Business Unit Leaders through
written schemes of management. The Head of Corporate Resources will also provide detailed
finance protocols, procedures and guidance and training for managers, staff and Members.
The Council’s Risk Management Strategy ensures proper management of the risks to the
achievement of the Council’s priorities and helps decision-making. In the Council’s day-to-day
operations, a framework of internal controls (e.g. authorisation, reconciliations, separation of
duties, etc) control the risks of fraud or error, and this framework is reviewed by Internal Audit.
Partnership working is governed by agreements, protocols or memoranda of understanding
relevant to the type of work or relationship involved. The Council’s legal services and procurement
teams ensure that all are fit for purpose and the Council’s interests are protected.
The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective development and operation of
corporate governance in the Council. It provides independent assurance of the adequacy of the
Council's governance arrangements, including the associated control environment, the authority's
financial (and non-financial) performance to the extent that it affects the authority's exposure to risk
and weakens the control environment, oversight of the financial reporting process and scrutiny of
the treasury management strategy and policies.
It is planned as part of the action plan arising from the Governance Review (see below) to further
align the Audit Committees’ general oversight with the guidance from CIPFA on the ‘Role of the
Audit Committee in Local Government’ and allow it to review the management of Strategic Risks
on an annual basis. This is subject to an amendment to the constitution to follow in the year.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

14

4.

Review of effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is
informed by the work of the senior managers within the Council who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Internal Audit annual report,
and by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.
The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance framework includes the following in the last year:


A review of governance across the authority during late winter and early spring 2021 by a
respected and expert independent third party, the report from which has been positively
received and is being implemented in accordance with its Action Plan.



The Council’s internal management processes, such as performance monitoring and
reporting; the staff performance appraisal framework; monitoring of policies, such as the
corporate complaints and health and safety policies; and the corporate budget challenge
process;



The oversight of the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) of our
processes in administering and awarding some £40m of Covid grants, delivered at pace and
against a changing suite of guidance.



The work of the corporate Joint Procurement Board partnered with Horsham DC and
Crawley BC;



The Council’s internal audit coverage (purchased from Crawley BC under a shared service
arrangement), which is planned using a risk based approach. The outcome from the internal
audit coverage helps form the Chief Internal Auditor’s opinion on the overall adequacy of the
Council’s internal control framework, which is reported in their annual report.



The Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report on anti-fraud and corruption activities, including the
use of the National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise;



The annual review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function;



External audit review of the work of the internal audit service and comment on corporate
governance and performance management in their Annual Audit Letter and other reports;



Workforce assessments and accreditation where appropriate and affordable;



The External Auditor’s opinion on the Council’s financial statements;



The work of the Audit Committee, which reviews the outcomes from the annual audit plan
and the annual report of the audit function;



The work of the Scrutiny Committees;



An annual review of the constitution by the Constitutional Review Group, which recommends
amendments to the Constitution, where appropriate, for agreement by the Council. The last
review, reported to, and agreed by, Council in May 2020 reduced the number of planning
committees to two per month on regular Thursdays to align better with the level of business
and the number of meetings held at similar District Councils. This change has worked well to
date.



Work of the Standards Committee, which includes monitoring the operation of the Members’
Code of Conduct and the Member and Officer Protocol.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

15

5.

Significant governance issues

The Covid-19 pandemic has provided the context within which all business at the authority has
been conducted during 2020/21. It has necessitated working at speed to provide new services,
such as national grant schemes, as well as provide extended services in areas of higher demand
such as Housing and Homelessness. Remote working has been instituted and adopted very
quickly and staff teams have had to adapt to this new way of working without recourse to physical
resources such as paper files and meeting spaces.
Similarly, Members have adapted to virtual meetings throughout the year, which has enabled
scrutiny and decision making to continue to a high standard.
Importantly, an independent Governance Review has been undertaken during this year and it
provides a helpful, external perspective on the Council’s Governance arrangements.
The Review has confirmed that the Council’s formal governance meets statutory requirements. It
also makes some helpful recommendations. They are in two phases; the first focussing on
improving cross party working within the Council and the knowledge and familiarity of all members
with the Council’s governance arrangements. The second phase recommends a review of the
Scrutiny, Council and working group arrangements with a view to reducing cost and increasing
impact. The Review also made a number of minor suggestions to strengthen the Council’s
Governance. The Review’s Action Plan allocates clear responsibilities for implementing all the
changes recommended.
The report of the external reviewer has been shared with all members and discussed at a private
workshop. A report on the Review will be considered by Council at its meeting in September.
There was one call in during the year concerning a decision of Cabinet to close Clair Hall in
Haywards Heath. The Scrutiny Committee decided that no further consideration by the Cabinet
was necessary. However, subsequently a judicial review was issued by a local resident against the
Council regarding the decision to close Clair Hall which resulted in a consent order being agreed
by the parties to conclude the proceedings ahead of a preliminary court hearing and in accordance
with that consent order the Council is now undertaking consultation and engagement regarding the
future of Clair Hall.
This started in June 2021 and will run for 12 weeks after which Cabinet will reconsider the future of
the Clair Hall site.
Specific opportunities for improvements in governance and internal controls identified as part of the
assurance processes detailed above have been addressed or are included in action plans for the
relevant managers.

Cllr Jonathan Ash-Edwards
Leader of Council
July 2021

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Kathryn Hall
Chief Executive
July 2021

16

Agenda Item 7
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021
Report from:
Audit and Risk Manager
Contact Officer:
Gillian Edwards
Email:
gillian.edwards@crawley.gov.uk
Tel:
01293 438384
Wards Affected:
All
Key Decision
No
Date of Meeting
_________________________________________________________________________
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

Purpose of Report
This is the annual report of the Audit and Risk Manager of Mid Sussex District Council
for 2020/2021.

2.

Summary

2.1

The Internal Audit section completed the programme of audits for the year ended 31 st
March 2021 in accordance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).
In carrying out its work, the full cooperation of management and staff was gratefully
received throughout the year.

2.2

All of the audits within the plan have now been completed and I can report that one
high priority finding was identified during the financial year in question and that action
to address the weakness was agreed and is being implemented by Management.

2.3

It is the opinion of Audit and Risk Manager that on the whole, the Council had an
adequate, effective and reliable framework of internal control for the year 2020/2021.

2.4

We are grateful for the Audit Committee’s role in monitoring the implementation of
these recommendations.

3.

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to receive the report.

________________________________________________________________________

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

17

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2020/2021
1

Introduction and Background

1.1

Internal Audit is a key part of the Council’s internal control environment. Central to its
role is assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems and controls that have
been put in place by management. To this end the work undertaken is designed to:
•

inform the members and senior management to what extent they can rely on the
internal controls;

•

to make recommendations to enhance controls where weaknesses are identified;
and

•

advise individual managers on the reliability of the systems and associated
controls for which they are responsible.

1.2

The internal control environment comprises the whole network of systems and controls
established to ensure that the Council’s objectives are met. It includes financial and
other controls and also arrangements for ensuring that the Council is achieving value
for money from its activities.

1.3

There have been no restrictions imposed on the scope of the internal audit function.

Specific requirements for Internal Audit
1.4

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to undertake an
adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of
internal control in accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control.
Proper practices as stated within the Regulations are now defined as the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Internal Audit in Local Government (2006) with effect from 1 April 2013.

1.5

The PSIAS apply to all internal audit service providers, whether in-house, shared
services or outsourced. The PSIAS included an updated definition of internal auditing,
further emphasising the role of internal audit in reviewing all systems of risk,
governance and internal control. The definition also focuses on the role of Internal
Audit in assisting the organisation to achieve its objectives.

1.6

The PSIAS require the purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity
to be formally defined in an internal audit charter. Additionally, internal auditors must
conform to a Code of Ethics: Integrity; Objectivity; Confidentiality; and Competency.
The Code of Ethics includes two components:
1)
2)

1.7

Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing; and
Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of internal auditors.
These rules are an aid to interpreting the Principles into practical applications
and are intended to guide the ethical conduct of internal auditors.

The PSIAS are split into two groupings. The Attribute Standards address the
characteristics of organisations and parties performing internal audit activities. The
Performance Standards describe the nature of internal audit activities and provide
quality criteria against which the performance of these services can be evaluated:

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

18

Attribute standards
1 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility;
2 Independence and Objectivity;
3 Proficiency and due professional care; and
4 Quality assurance and improvement programme.
Performance standards
5 Managing the internal audit activity;
6 Nature of work;
7 Engagement planning;
8 Performing the engagement;
9 Communicating results;
10 Monitoring progress; and
11 Communicating the acceptance of risks.
1.8

Section 1320 of the PSIAS - Reporting on the Quality Assurance and Improvement
Programme – states that ‘the chief audit executive (Audit and Risk Manager) must
communicate the results of the quality assurance and improvement programme to
senior management and the board’.

1.9

These standards require the Audit and Risk Manager to undertake an annual selfassessment of the internal audit service against a Quality Assurance and Improvement
Plan (QAIP) checklist and to outline the results as part of the Annual Audit Report. This
has been undertaken as at 31st March 2021 and I can confirm that the Internal Audit
Service was compliant for the period under review.

Annual Governance Statement
1.10

The Audit Committee receives the Annual Governance Statement annually in the
Statement of Accounts. This report forms the basis for the Council’s Management
Team and the Audit Committee to undertake their annual review of internal control and
to approve the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/2021.

This report
1.11

This annual report has been produced in accordance with the requirements of the
PSIAS. It covers the effectiveness of internal control for the period 1st April 2020 to 31st
March 2021.

1.12

It should be noted that it is not the responsibility of Internal Audit to operate the system
of internal control; rather, this is the responsibility of management. Furthermore, it is
management’s responsibility to determine whether to accept and implement
recommendations made by internal audit or, alternatively, to recognise and accept any
risks arising from not taking action.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

19

2.

Internal Audit activity during 2020/2021
Significant events during the year

2.1

The Council’s overall internal control framework is considered to have operated
effectively during the year. We have completed all of our planned audit work and
responded to requests from the Head of Corporate Resources to undertake alternative
or additional work, as part of our audit programme. Where internal audit work has
highlighted instances of none or part compliance, none are understood to have had a
material impact on the Authority’s affairs.

2.2

For a second year, the opinion provided must be considered in light of the current (at
time of writing) ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and the impact of this on the Council.
My opinion is based on internal audit work undertaken during 2020/2021, all of which
took place during the pandemic and the continuing emergency measures being
implemented.

2.2

COVID-19 measures have continued to pose a significant level of challenge to the
Council and put pressure on the expected control environment; the need for prompt
and urgent action by officers has required changes to some procedures and control
arrangements for example, Business Grant Funding. However, it is considered that,
informed by the work that we have undertaken, the control environment remained
strong.

2.3

It is expected that the incoming Internal Auditor will seek to provide assurance to
stakeholders in the coming months that the internal control environment continued to
be sound and that risk management and governance arrangements were operating
satisfactorily.
Factors affecting the extent of our internal audit work

2.3

There were no factors which have affected the extent of our internal audit work during
the year.

Summary of Internal Audit Work Undertaken in 2020/2021
INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE OPINIONS
AUDITS

Disabled Facility Grants
Contract Register
Council Tax
NNDR
Housing Benefits
Payroll System XCD Post Implementation Review
Payroll
Income Collection (Cash and Bank)
Creditors
Sundry Debtors
Treasury Management
FMS
Small Business Grants
Discretionary Grants
NFI
Budgetary Control
Capital Accounting and Asset Management
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Substantial
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
N/A
Substantial
Substantial
20

The Audit Plan
2.3

The 2020-2021 audit plan was agreed by the Head of Corporate Resources (Council’s
S151 Officer) and the Audit Committee was asked to receive the report.

2.4

The 2020-2021 audit plan was completed in full and included audits of the Council’s
fundamental systems, and operational audits, along with ad-hoc reviews.

3. Assurance Statement by the Internal Audit Provider
3.1

As the provider of an internal audit service to Mid Sussex District Council I am required
by the PSIAS to provide the Council with assurance on the whole system of internal
control. In giving my opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute.
The most that the internal audit service can provide is reasonable assurance that there
are no major weaknesses in the whole system of internal control. In assessing the
level of assurance to be given we have taken into account:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

(h)

the findings arising from audits undertaken during 2020/2021 and in previous
years;
the results of management action taken in respect of recommendations made in
audits from the current and previous years;
whether or not any high or medium recommendations have not been accepted
by management, and the consequent risks;
the effects of any material changes in the Council’s objectives or systems;
matters arising from previous reports of the external auditor;
whether or not any limitations have been placed on the scope of internal audit;
whether or not there have been any resource constraints that may impinge on
the Head of Corporate Resources’ ability to meet the full audit needs of Mid
Sussex District Council; and
the proportion of the audit needs that have been covered to date.

3.2

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during our
internal audit work during the course of the year, and are not necessarily a
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all improvements that
may be required.

3.3

This report is prepared by Gillian Edwards, Audit and Risk Manager at Crawley
Borough Council, in the capacity of Head of Audit for Mid Sussex District Council as
part of a shared service arrangement. Details may be made available to the specified
external agencies, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be
quoted or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent. No responsibility to any
third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended for any
other purpose.
Overall assurance

3.4

In my opinion, for the 12-month period to 31st March 2021, and subject to any
subsequent issues arising from the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, Mid Sussex District
Council had an adequate, effective and reliable framework of internal control that
provides reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievement of
the Council’s objectives.
Operational assurance

3.5

The internal audit service examined systems operating to achieve the Council’s
objectives in several areas.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

21

3.7

During the conduct of our audit work we have had regard to the following objectives of
internal audit:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

to review and appraise the soundness, adequacy and application of the whole
system of internal control;
to ascertain the extent to which the whole system of internal control ensures
compliance with established policies and procedures;
to ascertain the extent to which the assets and interests entrusted to or funded
by the Council are properly controlled and safeguarded from losses;
to ascertain that management information is reliable as a basis for the
production of financial, statistical and other returns;
to ascertain the integrity and reliability of information provided to management
including that used in decision making; and
to ascertain that systems of control are laid down and operate to achieve the
most economic, efficient and effective use of resources.

3.8

The level of assurance given by an individual audit is directly related to the significance
of the findings and categories given to the resultant recommendations.

4

Policy Context

4.1

Receiving this report enables the Committee to perform its duties under the Accounting
and Auditing regulations

5.

Other Options Considered

5.1

None.

6.

Financial Implications

6.1

This is a report on the activity of Internal Audit in the previous year and as such does
not have any financial implications. The budget for Internal Audit relating to work
undertaken during 2020/2021 has been discussed previously in the Revenue Budget
Management reports for the year.

7

Risk Management Implications

7.1

None.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

22

Agenda Item 8
REVIEW OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 2020/21
REPORT OF:

Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources
Email: pamela.coppelman@adur-worthing.gov.uk Tel: 01903 221236

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision

No

PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

The report sets out the Council’s treasury management activity for the year ended 31
March 2021.

SUMMARY
2.

All transactions are in order and the performance of the service has been in keeping
with the requirements of the Service Level Agreement (SLA) with our shared services
provider, except as noted here. As previously reported, due to the receipt of significant
Government grants to be distributed to support local business during Covid-19
restrictions, counterparty investment limits were breached temporarily (section 10.3).

RECOMMENDATIONS
3.

The Committee is requested to note the contents of the report.

BACKGROUND
4.

The Treasury Management function of this Council has been provided by Adur and
Worthing Councils as a shared service since October 2010. This has enabled the cost
of the service to be reduced whilst giving access to specialist advice and the
administration skills of a larger authority. The SLA was extended for a further three
years from 18th October 2019.

5.

The 2020-21 Treasury Management Annual Report produced by the Group Accountant
(Strategic Finance) is attached as Appendix 1. Members should note that this report
format and level of detail is similar to that presented to the other authorities in the
shared service and whilst it may appear to contain much in the way of industry
knowledge, it would reward careful reading by those with an interest.
For those Members seeking a summary, paragraph 11.2 of Appendix 1 sets out the
key points:
“The actual outturn performance for investment income was a shortfall of £186k against
the budget, due to the lower than forecast interest rates available in the market. The
shared service will continue to monitor the market carefully for the best possible interest
rates. All counterparty lending limits approved at the start of the year were met except
as detailed here and previously reported, and all Prudential Limits were adhered to.”

6.

The Group Accountant would welcome questions and queries from Members using the
contact details above.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

23

POLICY CONTEXT
The presentation of this report fulfils the requirements under the Council’s treasury
management policy to produce an annual report by 31st August 2021 after the year
end. Providing transparency and approval of the strategies contained in this report is
an important part of the Council’s statutory role. Treasury Management has become
increasingly topical given the nature of the world’s financial markets in recent years,
and Members are expected to have a basic understanding of how the Council uses its
reserves and cash flows which are in the stewardship of the Head of Corporate
Resources.

7.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
None – this report is statutorily required by regulations issued under the Local
Government Act 2003.

8.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
9.

This report has no quantifiable financial implications. Interest payable and interest
receivable arising from treasury management operations, and annual revenue
provisions for repayment of debt, form part of the revenue budget but are not required
to support the provision of services.

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
10.

This report has no specific implications for the risk profile of the Council.

EQUALITY & CUSTOMER SERVICE IMPLICATIONS
11.

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS


Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual Investment Strategy 2020/21
to 2022/23 (Council on 22nd July 2020), and Review of Treasury Management
Activity 1 April – 30 September 2020.



The CIPFA code of Practice on Treasury Management (the code).



CIPFA Prudential code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code)



Link Asset Services report template (April 2021)

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

24

APPENDIX 1
1.

SUMMARY
This report summarises the operation of the treasury management service for the financial
year 2020/21. The presentation of this report fulfils the requirements under the Council’s
treasury management policy.

2.

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

2.1

Treasury management is defined as:
“The management of the local authority’s cash flows and investments, its banking, money
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”

2.2

The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce
an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and treasury
indicators for 2020/21. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice
on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

2.3

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny of
treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore, important in that respect,
as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with
the Council’s policies previously approved by members.

2.4

For 2020/21 the minimum reporting requirements were that the Council should receive the
following reports, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals:



The Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
approved by full Council in advance of the year (Council – 22 July 2020, delayed due to the
cancellation of meetings because of Covid-19 restrictions)



The mid-year treasury management operations update report



An annual review (this report) to be presented to the Audit Committee following the end of the
year, describing the activity compared to the strategy.

2.5

The Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the code to give prior
scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Audit Committee before they
were reported to the full Council. Due to Covid-19 restrictions training for members has been
delayed, but will be organised as soon as possible.

3.

THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL FINANCING AND EXPENDITURE
The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may either
be:



Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources (capital receipts,
capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant impact on the Council’s
borrowing need; or
If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the capital
expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

25

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators, because the
Council must ensure that capital expenditure is affordable, approved and monitored. The table
below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed.

2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Strategy

2020/21
Actual

Capital expenditure

9.492

2.232

11.419

Financed in year

9.492

2.232

11.419

Unfinanced capital
expenditure

0.000

0.000

0.000

£m

4.

THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED

4.1

Some of the Council’s capital expenditure is funded immediately by, for example, capital
grants, capital receipts from the sale of assets, or from contributions from the revenue budget
(capital funded by revenue as approved by statute). Capital expenditure that is not funded by
any of these means is described as “the underlying need to borrow” and is termed the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR). The Council decides whether or not to borrow these
amounts externally, or alternatively to use cash that would otherwise be invested (internal
borrowing). This decision is based on a number of factors, including the prevailing interest
rates for borrowing compared to those for investing, the likelihood of a capital receipt in the
near future or a forecast of additional capital grants.

4.2

Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the
medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross external
borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing
requirement in the preceding year (2020/21) plus the estimates of any additional capital
financing requirement for the current (2021/22) and next two financial years. This essentially
means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure. This indicator
allowed the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs to take
advantage of, say, low interest rates.
The table below highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR.

31 March 2020
Actual

31 March 2021
Strategy

31 March 2021
Actual

CFR (£m)

27.438

16.916

7.195

External Debt

(7.437)

(5.298)

(5.298)

Finance Lease *

(2.541)

(2.258)

(2.258)

Total Borrowing

(9.978)

(7.556)

(7.556)

(Over)/under borrowing

17.460

9.360

(0.361)

The difference between the forecast CFR and the actual CFR at 31 March 2021 is due to the
receipt in full of the proceeds from the sale of Hurst Farm. The forecast assumed a partial
receipt in 2020/21.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

26

*The Authority has a contract with SERCO for the provision of waste collection. The new fleet
of vehicles used to provide the service is shown as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance
Sheet, with a vehicle life of 10 years 4 months which ends 30 July 2028. Accordingly this is
recognised as a Finance Lease.
The difference between the CFR and the gross borrowing position is termed under or over
borrowing. If a Council is under borrowed, it is using some of its internal cash that could
otherwise be invested. It can therefore choose to borrow externally up to the CFR so as to
take advantage of favourable interest rates. If a Council is over borrowed, it needs to ensure
that this position is remedied over a two year period. The Council was over borrowed by
£361k at the 31st March 2021, but will repay over £5m of debt in November 2021 and will
comply with this prudential indicator.
4.3

The authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local Government
Act 2003. Once this has been set, the Council does not have the power to borrow above this
level. The table below demonstrates that during 2020/21 the Council has maintained gross
borrowing within its authorised limit.
The operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of the Council during the year.
Periods where the actual position is either below or over the boundary are acceptable subject
to the authorised limit not being breached. The Council did not breach the operational
boundary during the year.
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of investment
income) against the net revenue stream. The costs incurred through capital expenditure are
the interest payable on money borrowed and the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP see
section 9), which is a statutory annual revenue charge to reduce the indebtedness of a Council,
based on the amount of unfunded capital expenditure.
Investment income is deducted from the costs and the net figure is then compared to the
Council’s net revenue stream – the income received from grants and taxation as shown in the
Statement of Accounts. Consequently if only the costs of the capital programme increase or
the investment income decreases, the proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream will
increase. If only the net revenue stream increases, then the proportion will reduce. Usually
there will be a combination of both factors.
2020/21
Authorised limit
Maximum gross borrowing position during the year
Operational boundary

£34.000m
£9.978m
£32.000m

Average gross borrowing position

£9.068m

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream

0.73%

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

27

5.

THE COUNCIL’S TREASURY POSITION AT 31 MARCH 2021

5.1

The Council’s treasury position at the beginning and end of the year was as follows:Principal
at
31.03.20
£m

Average
Interest
Rate

Average
Life in
Years

Principal
at
31.03.21
£m

Average
Interest
Rate

Average
Life in
Years

Borrowing
PWLB

(0.437)

4.55%

2.92

(0.298)

4.55%

1.92

Other Borrowing

(7.000)

1.14%

1.36

(5.000)

1.3%

0.64

Finance lease

(2.541)

(2.258)

TOTAL
BORROWING

(9.978)

(7.556)

CFR

27.438

7.195

(Over)/under
borrowing

17.460

(0.361)

Investments:
Local Authority
Property Fund

5.730

4.05%

n/a

5.689

4.14%

n/a

0.025
28.465

n/a
0.95%

n/a
< 1 year

0.025
57.010

n/a
0.26%

n/a
< 1 year

In-house:
Long Term
Short Term
TOTAL
INVESTMENTS
NET
INVESTMENTS

5.2

34.220

62.724

24.242

55.168

The maturity structure of debt table that follows demonstrates that procedures are in place to
prevent the maturity of too much debt in a single period, when only high interest rates may be
available for refinancing the debt, if required.

31 March 20

2021/22

actual

original limits

actual

Under 12 months

2.422

80%

5.434

12 months and within 24 months

5.434

70%

0.447

2 year to 5 years

1.054

80%

0.920

Over 5 Years

1.068

80%

0.755

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

31 March 2021

28

5.3

Investments held at 31 March 2021 (excluding the Local Authority Property Fund):

Counterparty

Issue Date

Maturity Date

Principal

Cambridge Building Society
Cambridge Building Society
Close Brothers Bank
Close Brothers Bank
Cumberland BS
Goldman Sachs Int Bank
Goldman Sachs Int Bank
Goldman Sachs Int Bank
Lancashire County Council
Lloyds Bank 95 day notice
Monmouthshire BS
National Counties BS
National Counties BS
Principality Build Soc
Progressive BS
Progressive BS
Saffron BS
Santander 95 day notice
Standard Chartered Bank
West Bromwich BS
West Bromwich BS
Blackrock MMF
CCLA MMF
Federated MMF
Goldman Sachs MMF
Handelsbanken call a/c
Invesco MMF

10/07/2020
25/06/2020
07/09/2020
31/03/2021
12/02/2021
24/02/2021
03/03/2021
31/03/2021
08/07/2020
22/07/2020
13/11/2020
18/01/2021
22/03/2021
31/03/2021
01/12/2020
19/06/2020
20/11/2020
10/11/2020
31/03/2021
01/07/2020
19/06/2020
01/10/2020
06/02/2020
01/05/2019
20/11/2020
15/06/2018
10/06/2019

09/07/2021
05/07/2021
07/09/2021
30/03/2022
07/02/2022
24/02/2022
07/03/2022
30/09/2021
05/07/2021
n/a
13/05/2021
05/05/2021
22/03/2022
30/04/2021
01/12/2021
05/07/2021
19/11/2021
n/a
31/03/2022
01/07/2021
05/07/2021
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

£1,000,000
£2,000,000
£2,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,000,000
£1,000,000
£1,000,000
£1,000,000
£2,000,000
£10,000
£3,000,000
£1,000,000
£2,000,000
£3,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,000,000
£3,000,000
£4,000,000
£3,000,000
£1,000,000
£2,000,000
£3,000,000
£3,000,000
£3,000,000
£3,000,000
£4,000,000
£3,000,000
£57,010,000

TOTAL

Interest
Rate

0.5000
0.5200
0.8000
0.4500
0.1300
0.3150
0.3400
0.2350
0.4000
0.0500
0.3700
0.2300
0.3400
0.0600
0.4000
0.5500
0.4000
0.4500
0.1800
0.4000
0.5000
0.0000
0.0391
0.0100
0.0068
0.0150
0.0099

Long
Term
Rating

*
*
AA*
A+
A+
A+
AAA+
*
*
*
BBB
*
*
*
A
A
BBBBAAA
AAA
AAA
AAA
AAAAA

* - Not on credit list
All investments listed are due to mature within 12 months.
Local Authority Property Fund – the Council has also invested £6m with the Local
Authorities’ Property Fund.
6.

THE STRATEGY FOR 2020/21

Some of the information and tables in the following paragraphs are supplied by the
Council’s treasury advisors, Link Asset Services and consist of detailed economic
and market information which informed the Council’s treasury management decisions
throughout the year.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

29

6.1

Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk
(LIBID - London Interbank Bid Rate - the rate bid by banks on deposits)

Investment returns which had been low during 2019/20, plunged during 2020/21 to
near zero or even into negative territory. Most local authority lending managed to
avoid negative rates and one feature of the year was the growth of inter local authority
lending. The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy
for 2020/21 was that Bank Rate would continue at the start of the year at 0.75 % before
rising to end 2022/23 at 1.25%. This forecast was invalidated by the Covid-19
pandemic bursting onto the scene in March 2020 which caused the Monetary Policy
Committee to cut Bank Rate in March, first to 0.25% and then to 0.10%, in order to
counter the hugely negative impact of the national lockdown on large swathes of the
economy. The Bank of England and the Government also introduced new
programmes of supplying the banking system and the economy with massive amounts
of cheap credit so that banks could help cash-starved businesses to survive the
lockdown. The Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities
to pass on to businesses. This meant that for most of the year there was much more
liquidity in financial markets than there was demand to borrow, with the consequent
effect that investment earnings rates plummeted.
While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully
appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in terms of
additional capital and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the financial crisis.
These requirements have provided a far stronger basis for financial institutions, with
annual stress tests by regulators evidencing how institutions are now far more able to
cope with extreme stressed market and economic conditions.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

30

6.2

Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk
Until 31st March 2021, when the Capital Financing Requirement was reduced through
a large capital receipt, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position in
2020/21. This meant that the capital borrowing requirements (the Capital Financing
Requirement), was not fully funded with loan debt, as cash supporting the Council’s
reserves, balances and cash flow was used as an interim measure. This strategy was
prudent as investment returns were low in relation to the cost of borrowing and
minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be considered. All
capital expenditure in 2020/21 was funded through grants or other contributions, so no
new borrowing was required.
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was
adopted with the treasury operations. The Head of Corporate Resources therefore
monitored interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based
upon the following principles to manage interest rate risks
· if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short
term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of
risks of deflation), then any necessary long term borrowings would have been
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term
borrowing would have been considered.
· if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long
and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the
start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase
in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio
position would have been re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding, if required,
would have been drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected to
be in the next few years.

6.3

Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed borrowing
rates during 2020/21 and the two subsequent financial years. Variable, or short-term rates,
were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period. The following table shows
the interest rate forecast as at 31 January 2020.

PWLB rates are based on, and are determined by, gilt (UK Government bonds) yields
through H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields. The main
influences on gilt yields are Bank Rate, inflation expectations and movements in US
treasury yields. Inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over
the last 30 years in lowering inflation and the real equilibrium rate for central rates has
fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that
central banks do not need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

31

consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled down the overall level of interest
rates and bond yields in financial markets over the last 30 years. We have seen over
the last two years, many bond yields up to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative on
expectations that the EU would struggle to get growth rates and inflation up from low
levels. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US
whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been
a precursor of a recession.

Gilt yields fell sharply from the start of 2020 and then spiked up during a financial
markets melt down in March caused by the pandemic hitting western countries; this
was rapidly countered by central banks flooding the markets with liquidity. While US
treasury yields do exert influence on UK gilt yields so that the two often move in
tandem, they have diverged during the first three quarters of 2020/21 but then
converged in the final quarter. Expectations of economic recovery started earlier in
the US than the UK but once the UK vaccination programme started making rapid
progress in the new year of 2021, gilt yields and gilt yields and PWLB rates started
rising sharply as confidence in economic recovery rebounded. Financial markets also
expected Bank Rate to rise quicker than in the forecast tables in this report.
At the close of the day on 31 March 2021, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were between
0.19 – 0.58% while the 10-year and 25-year yields were at 1.11% and 1.59%.
HM Treasury imposed two changes of margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates in
2019/20 without any prior warning. The first took place on 9th October 2019, adding
an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period rates. That increase was then,
at least partially, reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11th March 2020, but not
for mainstream non-HRA capital schemes. A consultation was then held with local
authorities and on 25th November 2020, the Chancellor announced the conclusion to
the review of margins over gilt yields for PWLB rates; the standard and certainty
margins were reduced by 1% but a prohibition was introduced to deny access to

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

32

borrowing from the PWLB for any local authority which had purchase of assets for yield
in its three year capital programme. The new margins over gilt yields are as follows: o
o
o
o
o

PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps)
PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps)
Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)

There is likely to be only a gentle rise in gilt yields and PWLB rates over the next three
years as Bank Rate is not forecast to rise from 0.10% by March 2024 as the bank of
England has clearly stated that it will not raise rates until inflation is sustainably above
its target of 2%; this sets a high bar for Bank Rate to start rising.
7

BORROWING OUTTURN for 2020/21

7.1

The Council has not borrowed more than, or in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.

7.2

No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between PWLB new
borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling unviable.

7.3

The Council’s debt at 31 March 2021 comprises one loan from the Public Works Loan Board
(PWLB), which matures on 1 March 2023 and one loan from another local authority for £5m,
repayable in November 2021. The local authority loan will be repaid using maturing
investments.

8

INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2020/21

8.1

Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by MHCLG investment
guidance, which has been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the
Council on 22nd July 2020. This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies,
supplemented by additional market data, (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank
share prices etc.). The receipt on 1 April 2020 of significant funds from the Government to be
used quickly to support local business necessitated the breach of the counterparty investment
limits on a temporary basis. This was reported to the Council and no losses were incurred. The
Council had no liquidity difficulties.

8.2

Local Authorities’ Property Fund – the Council has invested £6m with the Local Authorities’
Property Fund and earned £249k in dividend income in 2020/21.

8.3

Investments held by the Council (excluding the Local Authorities’ Property Fund)






The Council maintained an average balance of £42.433m of internally managed funds.
The internally managed funds earned an average rate of return of 0.40%
The comparable performance indicator for 12 month investments was 0.17% (rate
supplied by Link Asset Services).
This compares with a budget assumption of £35.448m investment balance earning an
average rate of 1%.
Total investment income was £168k compared to a budget of £354k.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

33

Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources and cash
flow monies. The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows:

8.4

Balance Sheet Resources
Balances

31 March 2020
£’000s

31 March 2021
£’000s

6.240

7.811

15.709

23.816

Provisions

1.431

3.401

Usable Capital Receipts

1.145

5.641

Capital Grants Unapplied

5.669

5.635

30.194

46.304

Earmarked Reserves

Amount available for
investment
9.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISIONS (MRP) FOR REPAYMENT OF DEBT

9.1

The Council, in accordance with legislation, makes a provision from revenue to enable the
repayment of borrowing that has been undertaken to fund the capital programme. This
provision is known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and is charged to the General
Fund Revenue Account each year. MRP is set aside each year at an amount equivalent to the
value of debt repaid in the year.

9.2

For 2020/21 an amount of £522k has been set aside in the annual accounts as the MRP for
repayment of debt.

10.

OTHER ISSUES AND MATTERS
Shared Services Arrangements

10.1

The Council’s treasury management services are provided under a shared services
arrangement (SSA) performed by the in-house treasury management team formed out of
partnership working between Adur District Council and Worthing Borough Council. The
treasury management team is based at Worthing Town Hall, but services all three Councils’
treasury management operations from this location utilising similar banking arrangements.
The SSA is provided under a Service Level Agreement that was renewed from 18th October
2019, and which defines the respective roles of the client and provider authorities for a period
of three years.

10.2

Statutory override
Following the consultation undertaken by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government, [MHCLG], on IFRS9 the Government has introduced a mandatory statutory
override for local authorities to reverse out all unrealised fair value movements resulting from
pooled investment funds. This will be effective from 1 April 2018. The statutory override
applies for five years from this date. Local authorities are required to disclose the net impact
of the unrealised fair value movements in a separate unusable reserve throughout the duration
of the override in order for the Government to keep the override under review and to maintain
a form of transparency.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

34

10.3

Covid-19
Due to the Covid-19 virus, the government made a payment of nearly £26.9m to the Council
on the 1st April 2020 to distribute as business grants to local businesses. Additional funding
has been received subsequently to provide relief to the local community, support the additional
costs that the Council is incurring and to compensate for loss of income.
The Council has been very successful in distributing the grants. However it was not possible
to accept the grant funding and also adhere to the counterparty investment limits set out in the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement, whilst managing these short term funds.
Consequently the counterparty investment limits were exceeded over several months and this
was reported to the Council. The service has mitigated the risk by spreading the additional
funds across the counterparties, using the usual criteria of “security, liquidity then yield.” Now
that the Council has distributed the majority of the grants it should be possible to adhere to
the treasury limits again, although this will depend on future government funding streams. The
Council has not incurred any loss due to this action, which has been reported to the Council
previously.
The Covid-19 virus has not affected the fixed term deposits already held by the Council.
However the rates on money market funds and new fixed term deposits are now much lower.
The Council does not invest in stocks and shares so is not exposed to those market
fluctuations.

11.

CONCLUSION

11.1

This report fulfils the requirements of the CIPFA Codes as well as the Council’s own treasury
management practices to present an annual outturn report on treasury management activity.

11.2

The actual outturn performance for investment income was a shortfall of £186k against the
budget, due to the lower than forecast interest rates available in the market. The shared
service will continue to monitor the market carefully for the best possible interest rates.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

35

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
REPORT OF:
Contact Officer:
Wards Affected:
Key Decision

1.

Head of Corporate Resources
Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources
Email: Peter.Stuart@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477315
All
No

Purpose of Report
To inform the Committee of the External Auditor’s plan to cover the 2020/21 audit of
the financial statements.

2.

Recommendations
The Audit Committee is recommended to note the 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan

3

Background

3.1

Attached at Annex 1 is the Annual Audit Plan for EY’s audit of the Council’s financial
statements for the year 2020/21. This document sets out the work of the auditor and
the risk areas that will receive attention as part of the audit.

3.2

Members will note that there are no particular risks associated with the audit of the Mid
Sussex statements but that local government as a whole has dealt with issues (such
as the administration and award of Covid grants, and claiming for Sales, Fees and
Charges Income Compensation) where some audit assurance has been sought, and
will be reported upon.

3.3

At the meeting, the Audit Director will be able to elucidate on any points raised by
Members.

4

Financial implications
There are no financial implications arising from this report. .

5

Equalities and customer service implications
The report raises no implications of this nature.

6

Risk Management Implications
No material risks arise from this report

7

Other Material Implications
None.

8

Sustainability Implications
None

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

37

Background Papers
None

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

38

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Mid Sussex District
Council
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2021
July 2021

39

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Mid Sussex District Council
Oaklands Road
Haywards Heath
West Sussex
RH16 1SS

13 July 2021

Dear Audit Committee Members
Audit planning report
We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to
provide the Audit Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2020/21 audit in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the
Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional
requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.
This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines
our planned audit strategy in response to those risks.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 27 July 2021 as well as understand whether there are other matters
which you consider may influence our audit.
Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

40

2

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Contents
01

Overview of our
audit strategy

for
02 Audit risks 03 Value
Money Risks

04 Audit
materiality

of our
05 Scope
audit

V
F
M

Independence
Appendices
06 Audit team 07 Audit
08
09
timeline

41

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/auditquality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and management of Mid Sussex District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Audit Committee, and management of Mid Sussex District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee and management of Mid Sussex District Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be
provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

3

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Overview of our 2020/21 audit 0
01 strategy
1
42

4

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit Committee with
an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.
Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus

Misstatements due to fraud or error

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition
– inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

Risk of fraud in revenue recognition
– sales, fees and charges income
grant

Risk identified

Fraud risk

Fraud risk

Fraud risk

Change from PY

No change in risk of
focus

No change in risk of
focus

New risk identified
this year

Details
As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. In addition to our overall response,
we consider where these risks may manifest themselves and identify separate
fraud risks as necessary below.

Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper recognition of revenue.
In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10, issued by
the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider
the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of
expenditure recognition.
Our judgement is the significant risk at the Council relates to the improper
capitalisation of revenue expenditure.
As one of the responses to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on Local
Authority finances, the Government introduced a reimbursement scheme for lost
fees and charges income. After an initial 5% reduction for annual variability, local
authorities are funded for 75% of their claimed losses.
There is both incentive and opportunity for local authorities to inflate the returns
to Central Government, and claim for funds that they are not entitled to under
the scheme. There is also the potential for error.

43

5

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Risk / area of focus

Risk identified

Change from PY

Details
Investment Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s
accounts and are subject to valuation changes.
Material judgemental inputs and estimation techniques are required to calculate
the year-end IP balances held in the balance sheet.
As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the outputs from the valuers are
subject to estimation, there is a higher risk that IP may be under/overstated or
the associated accounting entries incorrectly posted.

Valuation of investment property

Significant Risk

No change in risk or
focus.

We are required to undertake procedures on the use of experts and assumptions
underlying fair value estimates.
The risk is heightened for traditional retail assets due to market difficulties,
partly arising from the advent of Covid-19 (C-19), such as reduced consumer
confidence and competition from internet based retailers with lower cost bases.
This has led to a large number of retailers, including well known names, closing
stores, going into administration or otherwise seeking to reduce their rental
costs by renegotiating existing leases, perhaps by way of a Creditors Voluntary
Arrangements. These difficulties have had a direct impact on the value of the
retail units (high street shops, out of town retail parks and shopping centres)
leased to retailers or owned by them.

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by West
Sussex County Council.
Materiality
The Council’s pension fund asset is a material estimated balance and the Code
No
change
in
risk
or
requires
that this
asset
be disclosed
on the Council’s
balance sheet. The
Materiality has beenInherent
set at £1,609k,
which represents 2% of the
prior years
gross
expenditure
on provision
of services.
Pension liability Valuation
risk
focus.
information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the
actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

44

6

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Risk / area of focus

Accounting for Covid business
grants

Going Concern Disclosures:
Compliance with ISA 570

Risk identified

Change from PY

Inherent risk

New risk identified
this year

Inherent risk

No change in risk or
focus.

Details
Central Government have provided a number of new and different Covid-19
related grants to local authorities during the year. There are also funds that
have been provided for the Council to disseminate to other bodies.
The Council needs to review each of these to establish how they need to be
accounted for. It needs to assess whether it is acting as a principal or agent, with
the accounting to follow that decision.

The standard is effective for audits of financial statements for periods
commencing on or after 15 December 2019. This auditing standard has been
revised in response to enforcement cases and well-publicised corporate failures
where the auditor’s report failed to highlight concerns about the prospects of
entities which collapsed shortly after.
Public sector bodies are generally considered to be a going concern for the
purposes of preparing the financial statements. However, ISA 570, as applied by
Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the
United Kingdom, still requires auditors to undertake sufficient and appropriate
audit procedures to consider whether there is a material uncertainty on going
concern that requires reporting by management within the financial statements,
and within the auditor’s report.
To do this, the auditor must review management’s assessment of the going
concern basis applying IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements.

Materiality
Planning
materiality

£1,590k

Materiality has been set at £1,590k, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance
materiality

£1,193k

Performance materiality has been set at £1,193k, which represents 75% of materiality.

Audit
differences

45

£79k

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement and
collection fund) greater than 79k. Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent
that they merit the attention of the Audit Committee.

7

Overview of our 2020/201 audit strategy
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Audit scope
This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:
▪ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Mid Sussex District Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2021 and of
the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
▪ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return. Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable la ws and auditing standards.
When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:
▪ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
▪ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
▪ The quality of systems and processes;
▪ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
▪ Management’s views on all of the above.
By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.
Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks associated with
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not kept pace with
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the value for money conclusion. Therefore to
the extent any of these are relevant in the context of MSDC audit, we will discuss these with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

46

8

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
02 Audit risks
47

9

Audit risks
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error *

What is the risk?

What will we do?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

We will undertake our standard procedures to address fraud risk, which
include:

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240,
management is in a unique position to
perpetrate fraud because of its ability to
manipulate accounting records directly or
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on
every audit engagement.

➢ Inquiring of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in
place to address those risks.
➢ Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of
management’s processes over fraud.
➢ Considering the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to
address the risk of fraud.
➢ Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified
fraud risks, including;
➢ testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the
preparation of the financial statements.
➢ Review accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
➢ Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual
transactions.

48

10

Audit risks
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Risk of incorrect capitalisation
of revenue expenditure*

Financial statement impact
Misstatements that occur in
relation to the risk of fraud in
revenue and expenditure
recognition could affect the income
and expenditure accounts. We are
focussing our testing on capital
additions.

What is the risk?

What will we do?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We will:
• Test Property, Plant & Equipments additions to ensure that the
expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature.
• Test REFCUS, if material, to ensure that it is appropriate for the
revenue expenditure incurred to be financed from ring fenced capital
resources.
• Seek to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals
transferring expenditure from revenue to capital codes within the
general ledger.

We believe the risk of manipulation is most likely
to manifest in the incorrect capitalisation of
revenue expenditure, as there is an incentive to
reduce expenditure in the general fund which is
funded from Council Tax.
This could then result in funding of that
expenditure, that should properly be defined as
revenue, through inappropriate sources such as
capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing

49

11

Audit risks
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach. The risks identified below may
change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Risk of fraud in revenue
recognition – sales, fees and
charges income grant*

Financial statement impact
Inappropriate grant recognition
would decrease the net
expenditure from the general fund

What is the risk?

What will we do?

As one of the responses to the Covid-19
pandemic and its impact on Local Authority
finances, the Government introduced a
reimbursement scheme for lost fees and charges
income. After an initial 5% reduction for annual
variability, local authorities are funded for 75%
of their claimed losses.

Our approach will focus on:

There is both incentive and opportunity for local
authorities to inflate the returns to Central
Government, and claim for funds that they are
not entitled to under the scheme. There is also
the potential for error.

• Gain an understanding of the Council’s process for completing the fees
and charges reimbursement grants returns to Central Government;
• Assess whether those returns appropriately follow the guidance;
• Review whether the values included can be supported by relevant and
appropriate evidence.

The Council received £1.9m, and therefore,
there is the potential this could be materially
overstated.

50

12

Audit risks
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach. The risks identified below may
change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Valuation of investment property

Financial statement impact
If investment property are
incorrectly valued this would have
the impact of understating
expenditure

What is the risk?

What will we do?

Investment Properties (IP) represent significant
balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to
valuation changes.

We will:
• consider the competence, capability and objectivity of the
Council’s valuers;
• consider the scope of valuers’ work;
• ensure Property has been revalued annually as required by the
Code;

Material judgemental inputs and estimation
techniques are required to calculate the year-end IP
balances held in the balance sheet.
As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the
outputs from the valuers are subject to estimation,
there is a higher risk IP may be under/overstated or
the associated accounting entries incorrectly posted.
We are required to undertake procedures on the use
of experts and assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.
The risk is heightened for traditional retail assets due
to market difficulties, partly arising from the advent
of Covid-19 (C-19), such as reduced consumer
confidence and competition from internet based
retailers with lower cost bases. This has led to a large
number of retailers, including well known names,
closing stores, going into administration or otherwise
seeking to reduce their rental costs by renegotiating
existing leases, perhaps by way of a Creditors
Voluntary Arrangements. These difficulties have had
a direct impact on the value of the retail units (high
street shops, out of town retail parks and shopping
centres) leased to retailers or owned by them.

•
•

•
•

•
•

consider if there are any specific changes to assets that should
have been communicated to the valuer(s);
sample test key inputs used by the valuer(s) when producing
valuations;

consider the results of the valuers’ work;
challenge the assumptions used by the Council’s valuers by
reference to external evidence and our EY valuation specialists
(where necessary);
test journals for the valuation adjustments to confirm that they
have been accurately processed in the financial statements; and
test a sample of assets revalued in year to confirm that the
valuation basis is appropriate and the accounting entries are
correct

51

13

Audit risks
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.
What is the risk/area of focus?

What will we do?

Pension liability Valuation

We will:

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by West
Sussex County Council.
The Council’s pension fund asset is a material estimated balance and the Code
requires that this asset be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March
2021 this totalled £15,081k.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by
the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

•

Accounting for Covid business grants
Central Government have provided a number of new and different Covid-19
related grants to local authorities during the year. There are also funds that
have been provided for the Council to disseminate to other bodies.
Whilst there is no change in the CIPFA Code or accounting standard (IFRS 15) in
respect of accounting for grant funding, the emergency nature of some of the
grants received and in some cases the lack of clarity on any associated
restrictions and conditions, means that the Council will need to apply a greater
degree of assessment and judgement to determine the appropriate accounting
treatment in the 2020/21 statements. The Council needs to assess whether it is
acting as a principal or agent, with the accounting to follow that decision. For
those where the decision is a principal, it also needs to assess whether there are
any initial conditions that may also affect the recognition of the grants as
revenue during 2020/21.

We will:

•

•

•

•
•
•

Liaise with the auditors of West Sussex Pension Fund to obtain assurances
over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to West Sussex
County Council.
Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans Robertson) including
the assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting
Actuaries commissioned by Public Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local
Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY
actuarial team; and
Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the
Council’s financial statements in relation to IAS19.

Review the Council’s decision for new grant or funding arrangements whether
it is acting as principal or agent;
Review whether any initial conditions are attached to grants impacting their
recognition;
Assess whether the accounting appropriately follows those judgements; and
Check the Council has adequately disclosed grant income received in the
year, under both principal and agent arrangements.

52

.
14

Audit risks
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus?
Going Concern: Compliance with ISA 570
The standard is effective for audits of financial statements for
periods commencing on or after 15 December 2019. This
auditing standard has been revised in response to enforcement
cases and well-publicised corporate failures where the auditor’s
report failed to highlight concerns about the prospects of
entities which collapsed shortly after.
CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2020/21 states that an authority’s financial
statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis; the
accounts should be prepared on the assumption that the
functions of the authority will continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and can only be discontinued under
statutory prescription.
However, ISA 570, as applied by Practice Note 10: Audit of
financial statements of public sector bodies in the United
Kingdom, still requires auditors to undertake sufficient and
appropriate audit procedures to consider whether there is a
material uncertainty on going concern that requires reporting
by management within the financial statements, and within the
auditor’s report.
The revised standard increases the work we are required to
perform when assessing whether the pension fund is a going
concern. It means UK auditors will follow significantly stronger
requirements than those required by current international
standards, and we have therefore judged it appropriate to bring
this to the attention of the Audit Committee.
To do this, the auditor must review management’s assessment
of the going concern basis applying IAS1 Presentation of
Financial Statements.

What will we do?
The revised standard requires:
• auditor’s challenge of management’s identification of events or conditions impacting going
concern, more specific requirements to test management’s resulting assessment of going
concern, an evaluation of the supporting evidence obtained which includes consideration of
the risk of management bias;
• greater work for us to challenge management’s assessment of going concern, thoroughly
test the adequacy of the supporting evidence we obtained, evaluate the risk of management
bias, and make greater use of the viability statement. Our challenge will be made based on
our knowledge of the pension fund obtained through our audit, which will include additional
specific risk assessment considerations which go beyond the current requirements;
• a stand back requirement to consider all of the evidence obtained, whether corroborative or
contradictory, when we draw our conclusions on going concern; and
• necessary consideration regarding the appropriateness of financial statement disclosures
around going concern.
Please note that due to the advent of Covid-19 we performed additional detailed work over the
Council’s assessment of Going Concern in our 2019/20 audit. We do not expect the change in
ISA to significantly increase our work beyond the work performed in 2019/20. However, we will
discuss the detailed implications of the new standard with finance staff ahead of the 2020/21
accounts production.

53

15

Audit risks
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
Auditing accounting estimates
ISA 540 (Revised) - Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures applies to audits of all accounting estimates in financial statements for periods beginning
on or after December 15, 2019.
This revised ISA responds to changes in financial reporting standards and a more complex business environment which together have increased the importance of
accounting estimates to the users of financial statements and introduced new challenges for preparers and auditors.
The revised ISA requires auditors to consider inherent risks associated with the production of accounting estimates. These co uld relate, for example, to the
complexity of the method applied, subjectivity in the choice of data or assumptions or a high degree of estimation uncertainty. As part of this, auditors consider risk
on a spectrum (from low to high inherent risk) rather than a simplified classification of whether there is a significant risk or not. At the same time, we expect the
number of significant risks we report in respect of accounting estimates to increase as a result of the revised guidance in this area.
The changes to the standard may affect the nature and extent of information that we may request and will likely increase the level of audit work required, particularly
in cases where an accounting estimate and related disclosures are higher on the spectrum of inherent risk. For example:
We may place more emphasis on obtaining an understanding of the nature and extent of your estimation processes and key aspects of related policies and
procedures. We will need to review whether controls over these processes have been adequately designed and implemented in a greater number of cases.
We may provide increased challenge of aspects of how you derive your accounting estimates. For example, as well as undertaking procedures to determine whether
there is evidence which supports the judgments made by management, we may also consider whether there is evidence which could contradicts them.
We may make more focussed requests for evidence or carry out more targeted procedures relating to components of accounting estimates. This might include
the methods or models used, assumptions and data chosen or how disclosures (for instance on the level of uncertainty in an estimate) have been made, depending on
our assessment of where the inherent risk lies.
You may wish to consider retaining experts to assist with related work. You may also consider documenting key judgements and decisions in anticipation of auditor
requests, to facilitate more efficient and effective discussions with the audit team.
We may ask for new or changed management representations compared to prior years.

54

16

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
03 Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

55

17

V
F
M

Value for money

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

The Council’s responsibilities for value for money
The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding and
securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.
As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and how this has
operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailor’s the content to reflect its own individual
circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance issued in support of that
framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code
Under the 2020 Code we are still required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. However, there is no
longer overall evaluation criterion which we need to conclude on. Instead the 2020 Code requires the auditor to
design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the Council a
commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Council has in place to
secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.
The specified reporting criteria are:
• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;
• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and
delivers its services.

56

18

Value for money

V
F
M

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Planning and identifying VFM risks
The NAO’s guidance notes require us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the Council’s
arrangements, in order to enable us to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant weaknesses in
those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. This is a change to 2015 Code guidance notes where the NAO required auditors as part of planning, to
consider the risk of reaching an incorrect conclusion in relation to the overall criterion.
In considering the Council’s arrangements, we are required to consider:
• The Council’s governance statement
• Evidence that the Council’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period;
• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;
• The work of inspectorates and other bodies and
• Any other evidence source that we regard as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.
We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment of what
constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a si gnificant weakness in arrangements is a
matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:
Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk;
Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation;
Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or
Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on
action/improvement plans.
We should also be informed by a consideration of:
• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council;
• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves, or impact on budgets or cashflow forecasts;
• The impact of the weakness on the Council’s reported performance;
• Whether the issue has been identified by the Council’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;
• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review;
• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State;
• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;
• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and
• The length of time the Council has had to respond to the issue.
•
•
•
•

57

19

V
F
M

Value for money

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Responding to identified risks
Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to determine
whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, challenge of management’s
assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the audit committee.

Reporting on VFM
In addition to the commentary on arrangements, where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources the 2020 Code has the same requirement as the 2015 Code in that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the
financial statements.
However, a new requirement under the 2020 Code is for us to include the commentary on arrangements in a new Auditor’s Annual Report. The 2020 Code states that
the commentary should be clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the Council’s attention or the wider public. This should include
details of any recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been
implemented satisfactorily.

Status of VfM planning
We have not identified a VFM risk during our planning phase of the audit. However, we will continue to update our assessment throughout the audit, and will present any
changes to our risk assessment to the Audit Committee.

58

20

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
04 Audit materiality
59

21

Audit materiality
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Materiality
Materiality

Key definitions

For planning purposes, materiality for 2020/21 has been set at £1.59m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental
information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.
Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£1.19m which represents 75% of planning materiality. The rationale for
using 75% is based on the anticipation of identifying few or no errors during
the audit. This expectation has been built on our experience of the Council
in the prior year.

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund that
have an effect on income or that relate to other comprehensive income.

Performance
materiality

£79.51m

£1.19m
Planning
materiality

Audit
differences

£1.59m

£79k

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the audit
committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Specific materiality – We have set a materiality of £1,000 for sensitive
disclosures such as the remuneration disclosures , related party
transactions, members’ allowances and exit packages. This reflects our
understanding that an amount less than our materiality would influence the
economic decisions of users of the financial statements in relation to this.

60

We request that the Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, and agreement to,
these materiality and reporting levels.

22

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
05 Scope of our audit
61

23

Scope of our audit
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Our Audit Process and Strategy
Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping
Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:
1. Financial statement audit
Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).
We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.
Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.
Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.
2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)
We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

62

24

Scope of our audit
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)
Audit Process Overview
Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
•

Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2020/21 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.
Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Audit Committee.
Internal audit:
We will meet with the Head of Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with
reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

63

25

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
06 Audit team
64

26

Audit team
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area
Valuation of Land and Buildings

Pensions disclosure

Specialists
• Wilkes, Head and Eve – Management’s RICS Registered Valuers
• EY property valuers
• EY Actuaries
• PWC consulting actuary commissioned by NAO
• Hymans Robertson- Management’s Actuary

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.
We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:
•

Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

•

Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

•

Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

•

Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

65

27

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
07 Audit timeline
66

28

Audit timeline
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Timetable of communication and deliverables
Timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the au dit cycle in 2020/21. The final timetable
will depend on our ability to obtain sufficient, appropriate audit evidence to support our audit opinion.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit Committee and we will discuss them with the Audit Committee Chair as
appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Audit phase

Timetable

Planning:

February

Audit committee timetable

Deliverables

Audit Committee

Audit Planning Report

Audit Committee

Audit Results Report

Risk assessment and setting of scopes.
Walkthrough of key systems &
processes

March

Interim audit testing
April
May
June
July
Year end audit

August

Audit Completion procedures
September
October

Audit opinions and completion certificates
Auditor’s Annual Report

67

29

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
08 Independence
68

30

Introduction
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in December 2019, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate. The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.
Required communications
Planning stage
►

►

►
►

The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
you, your affiliates and directors and us;
The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;
The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
Information about the general policies and process
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

Final stage
►

►
►

►

►

►

►

In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create. We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;
Details of non-audit/additional services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is independent and, if applicable, that any
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
Details of any non-audit/additional services to a UK PIE audit client where there are differences of
professional opinion concerning the engagement between the Ethics Partner and Engagement Partner and
where the final conclusion differs from the professional opinion of the Ethics Partner
Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
Details of all breaches of the IESBA Code of Ethics, the FRC Ethical Standard and professional standards,
and of any safeguards applied and actions taken by EY to address any threats to independence; and
An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

69

31

Independence
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any. We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Overall Assessment
Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.
Self interest threats
A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council. Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you. At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake those permitted non-audit/additional services set out in Section 5.40 of the FRC Ethical Standard 2019 (FRC ES),
and we will comply with the policies that you have approved. We plan to undertake the Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP).
None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 (AGN01) and the services have been approved in
accordance with your policy on pre-approval.
The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70% and this has not been exceeded, therefore no additional safeguards are required. The HBAP
service is outside of the 70% cap, under AGN01.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you. We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report
Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.
Management threats
Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Pension Fund. Management threats may also arise during the
provision of a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report.
70

32

Independence
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
Other threats
Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2020
Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the hi ghest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2020 and can be found here:
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2020

71

33

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

01
09 Appendices
72

34

Appendix A
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Fees
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2020/21 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies.
This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.
Planned fee
2020/21

Scale fee
2020/21

Final Fee
2019/20

£

£

£

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

PSAA Scale Fee

38,917

38,917

38,917

► The production of materially accurate draft accounts;

Scale Fee rebasing (1)

25,314

25,314

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being
unqualified;

Proposed revised scale fee

64,231

64,231

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

Tbc

19.323

Total Audit Fee

64,231

83,554

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in
advance.

Other non-audit services not
covered above (Housing
Benefits) (4)

13,172

N/A

47,672

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

Total other non-audit services

13,172

N/A

47,672

Total fees

77,403

38,917

131,226

Scale fee variations (2,3)

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► The Council has an effective control environment.

All fees exclude VAT

Notes:

(1) As detailed in our 2019/20 Annual Audit Letter we have submitted a proposed rebasing of the scale fee to reflect changes in work required to address
professional and regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk. PSAA are yet to conclude on the rebasing.
(2) The 2019/20 Code work includes a proposed additional fee of £19,323, for additional work undertaken in relation to going concern, property valuations, and
the change in the Council’s FMS system. This additional fee is subject to approval from PSAA.
73

(3) As noted in the previous sections of this report, we have identified new and continuing risks for 2020/21 that are not within the scale fee, the impact of
amended auditing standards, and the changing requirements for our VFM responsibilities. Additional work will be required, but we are unable to quantify the impact
at this time.
(4) Fees for the Housing Benefits assurance 2019/20 included an additional fee of £34,500 for identified errors and extended testing.

35

Appendix B
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Required communications with the Audit Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit Committee.
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

Terms of engagement

Confirmation by the Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in
the engagement letter signed by both parties.

Our responsibilities

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Significant findings from
the audit

•
•
•
•
•
•

When and where
The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
Audit planning report

Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
Audit results report
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
Written representations that we are seeking;
Expected modifications to the audit report; and,
Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process.

74

36

Appendix B
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Going concern

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements

•

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Corrected misstatements that are significant
Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity
Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist
A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

•
•
•
•
Fraud

•
•
•

Related parties

•

75

•
•
•
•
•

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties Audit results report
including, when applicable:
Non-disclosure by management
Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement over disclosures
Non-compliance with laws and regulations
Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

37

Appendix B
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

Independence

External confirmations

Consideration of laws and
regulations

What is reported?

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
Audit Planning Report and Audit Results
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Report
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity
and independence
• Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
Audit results report
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures
•

•

Internal controls

When and where

•

Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off
Enquiry of the Audit Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the
Audit Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit

Audit results report

76

38

Appendix B
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Representations

Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report

•

Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit results report

Fee Reporting

•
•
•

Breakdown of fee information when the audit plan is agreed
Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report

77

39

Appendix C
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Additional audit information
Other required procedures during the course of the audit
In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.
Our responsibilities required
by auditing standards

•

•
•
•
•
•

•

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclos ures
made by management.
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Council to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial
statements, the Audit Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee and
reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
Maintaining auditor independence.

78

40

Appendix C
Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

Additional audit information (continued)
Purpose and evaluation of materiality
For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.
Materiality determines:
• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the financial statements; and
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.
The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

79

41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
NEW INTERNAL AUDIT PROVIDER: DRAFT CHARTER
REPORT OF:
Contact Officer:
Wards Affected:
Key Decision:
Report to:

HEAD OF CORPORATE RESOURCES
Peter Stuart
Email: peter.stuart@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477315
All
No
Audit Committee
27 July 2021

Purpose of Report
1.

To introduce the new provider of the Internal Audit service and set out some service
parameters and standards.

Recommendations
2.

The Committee is recommended to:
(i)

agree the Draft Charter.

Background
3.

Until 31st March 2021, the Internal Audit service was provided through a shared
service agreement with Crawley Borough Council. This arrangement had been in
place for around 9 years.

4.

This has now come to an end and the service is being provided by Mazars through a
framework contract set up by the London Borough of Croydon.

5.

As part of the contract initialisation with Mazars, a draft Charter is to be agreed in
order that both parties define expectations; this is attached at Appendix 1.

6.

Members are invited to consider this Charter and will be able to discuss its contents
with the Director of Mazars responsible for delivering our contract.

Policy Context
7.

The Internal Audit service allows the S151 Officer to have assurance that finance and
other systems are operating correctly and are properly controlled.

Other Options Considered
8.

None.

Financial Implications
9.

None. The service is expected to remain within budget.

Risk Management Implications
10.

The Internal Audit service is concerned with managing risk and to that end, will
enhance the governance framework to reduce risk.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

81

Equality and Customer Service Implications
11.

None.

Other Material Implications
12.

None.

Sustainability Implications
13.

None

Background Papers


None.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

82

Mid Sussex District Council
Internal Audit Charter
May 2021

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

APPENDIX 1

83

Introduction
The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority
and responsibility in accordance with UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The
charter establishes Internal Audit’s position within the organisation, including the nature of the
Head of Internal Audit’s functional reporting relationship with the Audit Committee; authorises
access, to records, personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of
engagements; and defines the scope of Internal Audit’s activities. It provides a framework for the
conduct of the service and has been approved by the Council’s Audit Committee.

The PSIAS also include a Mission Statement for Internal Audit which is ‘to enhance and
protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and
insight’.

The Charter will be reviewed annually.
Nature and Purpose
Mid Sussex District Council has developed a risk management framework, which includes:



Identification of the significant risks in the Authority’s operations and allocation of a risk
owner to each;



An assessment of how well the significant risks are being managed; and



Regular reviews by the Corporate Management Team of the significant risks, including
reviews of key risk indicators, governance reports and action plans, and any changes
to the Authority’s risk profile.

A system of internal control is one of the primary means of managing risk and consequently the
evaluation of its effectiveness is central to Internal Audit’s responsibilities.
Mid Sussex District Council’s system of internal control comprises the policies, procedures and
practices, as well as organisational culture that collectively support the Authority’s effective
operation in the pursuit of its objectives. The risk management, control and governance
processes enable the Authority to respond to significant business risks, be these of an
operational, financial, compliance or other nature, and are the direct responsibility of the Chief
Executive and Executive Directors.
The Authority needs assurance over the significant business risks set out in the risk management
framework. In addition, there are many other stakeholders, both internal and external, requiring
assurance on the management of risk and other aspects of the Authority’s business - these

1

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

84

including Members, regulators etc. There are also many assurance providers. The internal audit
function is the third line of defence in the Council’s ‘three lines of defence approach’ to risk and
assurance. The first line of defence comprises the Council’s core operational services, and the
second line comprises the oversight functions such as risk management.
The following diagram summarises the three lines of defence model and explains where Internal
Audit fits into the Council’s assurance process.

Internal Audit is defined by the Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices
Framework as ‘an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value
and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.’
In a local authority, Internal Audit provides independent and objective assurance to the
organisation, its Members through the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive, the Corporate
Management Team, and in particular to the Chief Finance Officer to help her discharge her
responsibilities relating to the proper administration of the Authority’s financial affairs under S151
of the Local Government Act 1972.
In addition, the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) specifically require the provision of an
internal audit service. In line with regulations, Internal Audit provides independent assurance on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s governance, risk management and internal
control systems.

2

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

85

In particular, Internal Audit carries out assurance and consulting activities across all aspects of
Mid Sussex District Council’s business, based on a programme agreed with the Audit Committee,
and coordinates these activities via the assurance framework. In doing so, Internal Audit works
closely with the Authority’s risk owners, service line risk teams, and the Corporate Management
Team.
In addition to providing independent assurance to various stakeholders, Internal Audit helps
identify areas where the Authority’s existing processes and procedures can be developed to
improve the extent with which risks in these areas are managed; and public money is safeguarded
and used economically, efficiently and effectively. In carrying out its work, Internal Audit liaises
closely with the Corporate Management Team and management in the service lines (including
risk teams).
The independent assurance provided by Internal Audit also assists the Authority to report annually
on the effectiveness of the system of internal control included in the Authority’s Annual
Governance Statement.
Authority and Access to Records, Assets and Personnel
Internal Audit has unrestricted right of access to all Authority records and information, both manual
and computerised, cash, stores and other property or assets it considers necessary to fulfil its
responsibilities. Internal Audit may enter Authority property and has unrestricted access to all
locations and officers where necessary on demand and without prior notice. Right of access to
other bodies funded by the Authority should be set out in the conditions of funding.
Any restriction (management or other) on the scope of Internal Audit’s activities will be reported
to the Audit Committee.
Internal Audit is accountable for the safekeeping and confidentiality of any information and assets
acquired in the course of its duties and execution of its responsibilities.
Internal Audit will consider all requests from the external auditors for access to any information,
files or working papers obtained or prepared during audit work that has been finalised, and which
external audit would need to discharge their responsibilities.

3

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

86

Responsibility
The Authority’s Head of Internal Audit is required to provide an annual opinion to the Authority
and to the Chief Finance Officer and the Chief Executive, through the Audit Committee, on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the Authority’s risk management, control and governance
processes. In order to achieve this, Internal Audit will:

 Coordinate assurance activities with other assurance providers (such as the service
line quality and risk teams, the external auditors, the auditors of the Authority’s
Quality Management, Environmental Management and Information Security
accreditations etc.) such that the assurance needs of the Authority, regulators and
other stakeholders are met in the most effective way.
 Evaluate and assess the implications of new or changing systems, products,
services, operations and control processes.
 Carry out assurance and consulting activities across all aspects of the Authority’s
business based on a risk-based plan agreed with the Audit Committee.
 Provide the Chief Finance Officer, Chief Executive and other officers with
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of
the key controls associated with the management of risk in the area being audited.
 Issue periodic reports as requested, to the Audit Committee, and the Corporate
Management Team summarising results of assurance activities.
 Promote an anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption culture within the Authority
to aid the prevention and detection of fraud;
 Assist in the investigation of allegations of fraud, bribery and corruption within the
Authority and notifying management and the Audit Committee of the results.
 Assess the adequacy of remedial action to address significant risk and control
issues reported to the Audit Committee. Responsibility for remedial action in
response to audit findings rests with line management.

4

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

87

Definition

Details

Responsibility in relation to
Internal Audit

The Audit Committee

To provide independent
assurance to members of
the adequacy of the risk
management framework
and internal control
environment. To provide
an independent review of
governance, risk
management and control
frameworks and oversee
the financial reporting
and annual governance
processes.

To oversee Internal Audit
(and External Audit),
helping to ensure efficient
and effective assurance
arrangements are in
place.

Senior Management

The Chief Executive and
Executive Directors are
empowered to take all
operational decisions,
within agreed policies, in
relation to the services for
which they are
responsible.

Corporate Management
Team

S151 Officer

To exercise the functions
of the Council’s chief
financial officer, including
proper administration of
the Council’s financial
affairs under S115 and
S151 of the Local
Government Act 1972
and S114 of the Local
Government Finance Act
1988.

Deal with internal audit
issues under the
Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015.

5

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

88

There are inherent limitations in any system of internal control and thus errors or irregularities
may occur and not be detected by Internal Audit’s work. Unless specifically requested and
agreed, Internal Audit will not perform substantive testing of underlying transactions.
When carrying out its work, Internal Audit will provide line management with comments and report
breakdowns, failures or weaknesses of internal control systems together with recommendations
for remedial action. However, Internal Audit cannot absolve line management of responsibility for
internal controls.
Internal Audit will support line managers in determining measures to remedy deficiencies in risk
management, control and governance processes and compliance to the Authority’s policies and
standards and will monitor whether such measures are implemented on a timely basis.
Where appropriate, Internal Audit will undertake assurance or consulting activities for the benefit
of the Authority in organisations wholly owned or controlled by the Authority (e.g. Local Authority
Trading Companies etc). Internal Audit may also provide assurance to the Authority on third party
operations (such as contractors and partners) where this has been provided for as part of the
contract.
The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that Internal Audit is adequately resourced and
afforded a sufficiently high standing within the organisation, necessary for its effectiveness.
Scope of Activities
As highlighted in the previous section, there are inherent limitations in any system of internal
control. Internal Audit therefore provides the Audit Committee, the Chief Executive and other
officers with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Authority’s governance, risk management and control processes using a systematic and
disciplined approach by:
 Assessing and making appropriate recommendations for improving the governance
processes, promoting appropriate ethics and values, and ensuring effective performance
management and accountability;
 Evaluating the effectiveness and contributing to the improvement of risk management
processes; and
 Assisting the Authority in maintaining effective controls by evaluating their adequacy,
effectiveness and efficiency and by promoting continuous improvement.

6

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

89

The scope of Internal Audit’s value adding activities includes evaluating risk exposures relating to
the Authority’s governance, operations and information systems regarding the:
 Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives;
 Reliability and integrity of financial and operational information;
 Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes;
 Safeguarding of assets; and
 Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts.

Reporting
For each engagement, Internal Audit will issue a report to the appropriate Audit Sponsor and
Chief Finance Officer or her nominee, and depending on the nature of the engagement and as
agreed in the engagement’s Terms of Reference, with a summary to the Audit Committee. CMT
will also be provided with reports on request.
The UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to report at the
top of the organisation and this is done in the following ways:

7

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

90

 The Internal Audit Charter is presented to the Audit Committee annually for formal
approval.
 The annual risk-based plan is compiled by the Head of Internal Audit taking
account of the Authority’s risk management / assurance framework and after input
from members of the Corporate Management Team. It is then presented to the
Corporate Management Team annually for noting and comment, and Audit
Committee for approval.
 The internal audit budget is reported to Cabinet and Full Council for approval
annually as part of the overall Authority budget.
 The adequacy, or otherwise, of the level of internal audit resources (as determined
by the Head of Internal Audit) and the independence of internal audit will be
reported annually to the Audit Committee.
 Performance against the annual risk-based plan and any significant risk exposures
and breakdowns, failures or weaknesses of internal control systems arising from
internal audit work are reported to the Corporate Management Team every six
months, and Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
 Any significant consulting activity not already included in the risk-based plan and
which might affect the level of assurance work undertaken will be reported to the
Audit Committee.
 Results from the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme will be reported
to both the Audit Committee and the Corporate Management Team.
 Any instances of non-conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
must be reported to the Corporate Management Team and the Audit Committee
and will be included in the annual Head of Internal Audit report. If there is
significant non-conformance, this may be included in the Authority’s Annual
Governance Statement.

8

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

91

Independence
The Head of Internal Audit has free and unfettered access to the following:
 Chief Executive;
 Chief Finance Officer;
 Monitoring Officer;
 Chair of the Audit Committee; and
 Any other member of the Corporate Management Team.

The independence of the Head of Internal Audit is further safeguarded as his/her annual appraisal
is not inappropriately influenced by those subject to internal audit.
To ensure that auditor objectivity is not impaired and that any potential conflicts of interest are
appropriately managed, all internal audit staff are required to make an annual personal
independence responsibilities declaration for:

 Annual Returns (a regulatory obligation regarding independence, fit and proper status and
other matters which everyone in Mazars must complete); and
 Continuing Professional Development (CPD).

Internal Audit may also provide consultancy services, such as providing advice on implementing
new systems and controls. However, any significant consulting activity not already included in
the audit plan and which might affect the level of assurance work undertaken will be reported to
the Audit Committee. To maintain independence, any audit staff involved in significant consulting
activity will not be involved in the audit of that area for a period of at least 12 months.

External Auditors
The external auditors fulfil a statutory duty. Effective collaboration between Internal Audit and the
external auditors will help ensure effective and efficient audit coverage and resolution of issues
of mutual concern. Where applicable, Internal Audit will follow up the implementation of internal
control issues raised by external audit.

9

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

92

Internal Audit and external audit may meet periodically to:
 Plan the respective internal and external audits;
 Discuss potential issues arising from the external audit; and
 Share the results of significant issues arising from audit work.

Due Professional Care
The Internal Audit function is bound by the following standards:
 Institute of Internal Auditor’s International Code of Ethics;
 Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan Principles);
 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards;
 All Authority Policies and Procedures; and
 All relevant legislation.


Internal Audit is subject to a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that covers all
aspects of internal audit activity. This consists of an annual self-assessment of the service and
its compliance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, on-going performance
monitoring and an external assessment at least once every five years by a suitably qualified,
independent assessor. An external assessment was carried out in December 2019 which
concluded that Mazars Risk Assurance Services conforms to the requirements of the International
Professional Practices Framework for Internal Audit and the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.
A programme of Continuous Professional Development CPD is maintained for all staff working
on internal audit engagements to ensure that auditors maintain and enhance their knowledge,
skills and audit competencies to deliver the risk-based plan. Both the Head of Internal Audit and
the Engagement Manager are required to hold a professional qualification (CMIIA, CCAB or
equivalent) and be suitably experienced.

10

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

93

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22
REPORT OF:
Contact Officer:
Wards Affected:
Key Decision:

Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services
Alison Hammond, Member Services Officer
Email: alison.hammond@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477227
All
No

Purpose of Report
1.

For the Audit Committee to note its Work Programme for 2021/22

Summary
2.

Members are asked to note the attached Work Programme. The Work Programme
will be reviewed as the final piece of business at each meeting, enabling additional
business to be agreed as required.

Recommendations
3.

The Committee are recommended to note the Committee’s Work Programme as set
out at paragraph 5 of this report.

Background
4.

It is usual for Committees to agree their Work Programme at the first meeting of a
new Council year and review it at each subsequent meeting to allow for the scrutiny
of emerging issues during the year.

The Work Programme
5.

The Committee’s Work Programme for 2021/22 is set out below:

Meeting date

Item

28 September 2021

Financial Statements
External Audit report
Internal Audit Monitoring Report

16 November 2021

Review of Treasury Management Activity
Annual Audit Letter
Grant certification
Internal Audit Monitoring Report

1 March 2022

External Audit Plan
Treasury Management Strategy Statement
Internal Audit Monitoring Report

Policy Context
6.

The Work Programme should ideally reflect the key priorities of the Council, as
defined in the Corporate Plan and Budget.

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

95

Other Options Considered
7.

None.

Financial Implications
8.

None.

Risk Management Implications
9.

None.

Equality and Customer Service Implications
10.

None.

Other Material Implications
11.

None.

Sustainability Implications
12.

None

Background Papers
13.

None

Audit Committee - 27 July 2021

96

